
TOWN OF PATTERSON 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

August 20, 2014 
 

AGENDA & MINUTES 
 
 
 
       Page                      
** Dominick Accurso Case #03-14 1 Public hearing remained opened; 

Applicant was not present – Application suspended. 
1) Linda Cowan Case #07-14 1 – 2 Public hearing remained opened; 

Applicant was not present –Application tabled pending 
Health Department approval. 

    
2) Peter Ruisi Case #09-14 2 Public hearing remained opened; 

Applicant was not present – Application tabled pending use 
variance application. 

    
3) NEV Realty Case #14-14 2 – 9 Public hearing opened and closed; 

Granted area variance for 8’ deer fence for side, rear, and 
front yards; Granted area variance for accessory structures to 
have a minimum separation distance of 3’. 

    
4) Other Business   
    
 a)    Minutes   9 – 11  June 18, 2014 minutes approved; July 16, 2014 minutes 

approved pending one spelling correction. 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  



 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

P.O. Box 470 
1142 Route 311 

Patterson, NY 12563 
 

Sarah Mayes 
Mary Schartau 

Secretary 
 

Richard Williams 
Town Planner 

 
Telephone    (845) 878-6500 
FAX             (845) 878-2019 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 TOWN OF PATTERSON 
 PLANNING & ZONING OFFICE 

 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

Lars Olenius, Chairman 
Howard Buzzutto, Vice Chairman 

Mary Bodor 
Marianne Burdick 
Michael Carinha 

 
 

PLANNING BOARD 
Shawn Rogan, Chairman 

Thomas E. McNulty, Vice Chairman 
Michael Montesano 

Ron Taylor 
Edward J. Brady, Jr.  

 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
August 20, 2014 Meeting Minutes 

Held at the Patterson Town Hall 
1142 Route 311 

Patterson, NY 12563 
 
 
Present were: Chairman Olenius, Board Member Mary Bodor, Board Member Marianne 
Burdick, Board Member Michael Carinha, Nancy Tagliafierro, Attorney with Town Attorney’s 
Office, and Richard Williams Sr., Town Planner. 
 
Chairman Olenius called the meeting to order at 7:20 p.m. 
 
There were approximately 3 members of the audience. 
 
Mary Schartau was the secretary for this meeting and transcribed the following minutes. 
 
Chairman Olenius led the salute to the flag. 
 
Roll Call:    
  Board Member Bodor  - Here 
  Board Member Burdick - Here 

Board Member Carinha  - Here 
Chairman Olenius  - Here 

 
SUSPENDED: DOMINICK ACCURSO CASE #03-14 
 
Chairman Olenius stated the first case is suspended so we don’t even have to read the legal 
[notice] on that. We can jump right to number four. 
 
 
1) LINDA COWAN CASE #07-14 
 
No one was present to represent the application. 
 
The Secretary read the following legal notice: 
 



  Zoning Board Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2014 Minutes Page 2 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN BY THE TOWN OF PATTERSON BOARD OF APPEALS 
of a public hearing to be held on Wednesday, August 20, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. at the Patterson 
Town Hall, 1142 Route 311, Patterson, Putnam County, New York to consider the following 
applications: 
 

Linda Cowan Case #07-14 – Special Use Permit Renewal: Held over from the 
March 19, 2014, April 16, 2014, May 21, 2014, June 18, 2014, and July 16, 
2014 meetings 

 
Chairman Olenius stated that’s fine. I don’t see Mr. Cowan, who has taken over the application, 
here tonight, and being that this is six months now, I’m going to request that a memo be sent to 
him alerting him that at next month’s meeting we’ll be making a decision on his case. Just send 
him out something just to… 
 
The Secretary stated okay. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated make sure he’s aware, please. 
 
The Secretary stated okay. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated you can go to… right to the next one. 
 
The Secretary stated okay. Number two. 
 
 
2) PETER RUISI (LIBERTY PAINTBALL GAMES) CASE #09-14 
 
No one was present to represent the application. 
 
The Secretary stated: 
 

 Peter Ruisi (Liberty Paintball Games) Case #09-14 – Area Variance: 
Held over from the April 16, 2014, May 21, 2014, June 18, 2014, and 
July 16, 2014 meetings 

 
Chairman Olenius stated okay, that… Mr. Ruisi submitted a letter to the board stating briefly that 
he’d like to keep us updated on a sign request. He’d still like to pursue the proper approvals. At 
the current time there’s a great deal of uncertainty at the ski area. Due to the condition he’s, uh, 
he’s basically asking for another extension so all the legal matters that are going on over there 
are resolved. So, we’ll hold him over again… he sounds like he may need more than a month, 
but… how long as he been on it… since April… we’ll just go month to month on it, but we’ll 
hold him over for now. We’ll keep his application ready.  
 
The Secretary stated number three. 
 
 
3) NEV Realty Case #14-14 
 
Two people were present to represent the application. 



  Zoning Board Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2014 Minutes Page 3 

 
 
The Secretary stated: 
 

 NEV Realty Case #14-14 – Area Variances held over from the July 16, 
2014 meeting 

 
Chairman Olenius stated gentlemen, come on up. Just state your name for the record, again. One 
more time. 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated I’m Pete Wheeler.  
 
Mr. Prospero stated Guido Prospero. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated thank you very much. I appreciate you meeting us, excuse me, out at 
the site because it made it a lot clearer as to what was going on out there with the adjoining 
properties and everything else that’s going on… because you have, actually, two separate 
variances for the separation and one for the deer fence, and everything. 
 
Howard Buzzuto (audience) stated you can’t hear. I can’t hear either. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated the deer fence. You showed us a sample there. Could you briefly 
describe it for the record…  
 
Mr. Wheeler stated yeah. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated what it looks like. 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated it’s made out of a plastic material… it… the holes in the material are 
rectangular, and it’s eight feet high. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated and it’s supported by… 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated it’s supported by – will be supported by – cedar stakes. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated about how far apart. 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated um… I imagine they’d be about ten feet apart or so. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated okay, and you just stretch it tight, and… 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated yeah. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated nail it to that. 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated you stretch it and nail it to that. Yeah. 
 
Board Member Bodor stated and this will go around the entire property, not just the back, or… 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated well, the, uh, about roughly ten acres of the property. 



  Zoning Board Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2014 Minutes Page 4 

 
 
Chairman Olenius stated the operating… 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated the operating area. 
 
Chairmen Olenius stated area, basically. 
 
Board Member Bodor stated okay. 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated yeah. The large rectangle, you know, area in the front of the property. 
 
Board Member Bodor stated okay [inaudible]… 
 
Chairmen Olenius stated you’re not going into that wetland area or anything… 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated we’re not going in the... 
 
Board Member Bodor stated the part that you’re using… 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated the property is about twenty-seven acres or so. So, it’s like a large triangle 
towards the swamp…  
 
Board Member Bodor stated yeah. 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated and we’re just doing the front area. About ten acres or so. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated and the… the other piece of this was the separation distance between 
the accessory structure, and you showed us visually when we were there. Basically, between 
each pair of structures is where the variance is required, because on the outer side of each pair 
there is a wider right-of-way for you – I think, as you described – to bring vehicles through… 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated sure, the tractors through… 
 
Chairman Olenius stated and… 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated so we have access at least to one side of the houses. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated right. 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated but they were never built to any standards, so even those roads could be, you 
know, between ten, twelve, possibly fifteen feet, but I’m not really sure. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated right. Right, but the structure itself was just basically a pipe frame… 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated yeah. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated with plastic… 
 
Mr. Wheeler: Right. 



  Zoning Board Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2014 Minutes Page 5 

 
 
Chairman Olenius stated stretched over the top there, so… 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated over the top in winter. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated I don’t see it as much of a fire risk, at any rate, and I think that was the 
purpose of that section of the could more than anything, wasn’t it. 
 
Richard Williams, Sr. (audience) stated correct, that’s basically the fire safety for fire fighters 
trying to get between structures that might be engulfed. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated I think if that plastic catches on fire, they’re not going to get there 
before it’s all gone, because… it’s probably just going to go. The structure will be there... or, the 
skeleton, I should say, will be left. There’s nobody in the audience, so… guessing there’s no 
input from the audience. 
 
Howard Buzzuto stated uh… I take that offensively. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated do you have something… 
 
[Laughter] 
 
Chairman Olenius [to Howard Buzzutto] stated do you have some input… 
 
Howard Buzzuto stated no, no…. [Laughter] 
 
Chairman Olenius stated sir. 
 
Howard Buzzutto stated thank you. 
 
[Laughter] 
 
Chairman Olenius stated okay, so, I don’t… I’ll make a motion to close the public hearing. 
 
Board Member Burdick stated second. 
 
Board Member Bodor stated second. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated all in favor. 
 
Motion carried by a vote of 4 – 0. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated okay. Let’s start with the separation distance. 
 
Chairman Olenius read the following resolution: 
 
 

 
 



  Zoning Board Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2014 Minutes Page 6 

 
IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF 

NEV Realty, LLC, Case #14-14 
For an Area Variance for Separation Distance between Accessory Structures 

 
WHEREAS, NEV Realty, LLC is the owner of real property located at 741 East Branch 

Road (R-4 Zoning District), also identified as Tax Map Parcel #24.-2-26, and 
 

WHEREAS, NEV Realty, LLC has made application to the Patterson Zoning Board of 
Appeals for an area variance pursuant to §154-27(A)(12)(b) of the Patterson Town Code; 
Permitted accessory uses, in order to allow for the 9 existing and 30 proposed cold frames to 
remain with a minimum separation distance of 3’ as shown on the submitted plans, and 
 

WHEREAS, §154-27(A)(12)(b) of the Patterson Town Code states that accessory 
structures shall not be closer than 15 feet to any other accessory structure, and  
 

WHEREAS the Patterson Town Code requires a 15’ separation between structures; 
Applicant has and will have 3’; Variance requested is for 12’, and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed action constitutes a Type II action under 6 NYCRR Part 617, 
and therefore requires no further review under the State Environmental Quality Review Act 
(SEQRA), and 
 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on the Application at the Patterson Town Hall, 
1142 Route 311, Patterson, New York on July 16, 2014 and August 20, 2014, and a site walk 
was conducted on August 8, 2014, to consider the application; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Patterson Zoning Board of Appeals has given careful consideration to 
the facts presented in the application and at the public hearings and finds that: 
 

1. the proposed application will not produce an undesirable change in the character 
of the neighborhood because the entire property is very well screened by a lot of 
mature plantings that will still have foliage summer and winter (evergreens). 

   
2. the benefit sought by the applicant cannot be achieved by any other feasible 

means due to the fact that these are… an unusual structure.  Just a metal pipe 
frame with plastic over it, and there is service access on either side of each pair. 

 
3. the variance requested is substantial, however not so much as to cause a denial 

of the request of variance. 
 

4. the proposed variance will not have an adverse effect or impact on the physical or 
environmental conditions in the neighborhood or district due to the fact that the 
plastic is only there in the winter and is typically pulled back during the 
summertime, so we still have a lot of non-impervious coverage during the 
summer (warm-weather) months. 

 
5. the alleged difficulty necessitating the variance was self-created, but is not 

sufficient so as to cause a denial of the requested variance.   
 



  Zoning Board Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2014 Minutes Page 7 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Patterson Zoning Board of Appeals 
hereby grants the application of NEV Realty, LLC for an area variance pursuant to §154-
27(A)(12)(b) of the Patterson Town Code; Permitted accessory uses, of 12’ in order to allow for 
the 9 existing and 30 proposed cold frames to have a minimum separation distance of 3’. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the variance granted herein is subject to the 
following special conditions:   
 

1. The Applicant will cure the existing front yard setback violation of two 
existing cold frames once the site plan is approved. 
 

Board Member Burdick: Second. 
 
    Board Member Bodor  - Yes 

Board Member Burdick  -    Yes 
    Board Member Carinha - Yes 
    Chairman Olenius  - Yes 
 
 
VOTE: Resolution carried by a vote of 4 to 0.  
 
 
Chairman Olenius stated that’s one down. Now, this one is going to take me a second. We’re 
going to ad lib this a little bit. 
 
Chairman Olenius read the following resolution: 
 
 

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF 
NEV Realty, LLC, Case #14-14  

For an Area Variance for an 8’ Fence 
 

WHEREAS, NEV Realty, LLC is the owner of real property located at 741 East Branch 
Road (R-4 Zoning District), also identified as Tax Map Parcel #24.-2-26, and 
 

WHEREAS, NEV Realty, LLC has made application to the Patterson Zoning Board of 
Appeals for an area variance pursuant to §154-15 A. of the Patterson Town Code; Fences, stone 
walls and masonry walls, in order to place an 8’ deer fence around the property, and  

 
WHEREAS, §154-15 A. of the Patterson Town Code states that a fence shall not exceed 

6’ in height along the side and rear property lines; that portion [variance] request is for 2’, and 
 
WHEREAS, §154-15 A. of the Patterson Town Code also states that a fence shall not 

exceed 4’ in height along the lot frontage; that portion of the variance [requested] is for 4’ for 
the frontage, and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed action constitutes a Type II action under 6 NYCRR Part 617, 
and therefore requires no further review under the State Environmental Quality Review Act 
(SEQRA), and 

 



  Zoning Board Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2014 Minutes Page 8 

 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on the Application at the Patterson Town Hall, 

1142 Route 311, Patterson, New York on July 16, 2014 and August 20, 2014, and a site walk 
was conducted on August 8, 2014 to consider the application; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Patterson Zoning Board of Appeals has given careful consideration to 
the facts presented in the application and at the public hearings and finds that: 

 
1. the proposed application will not produce an undesirable change in the character 

of the neighborhood due to the mature plantings surrounding the existing 
property and the fact that the fence will be inside of them. 

 
2. the benefit sought by the applicant cannot be achieved by other feasible means in 

light of the fact that the fence is being put there for the purpose of keeping deer 
out, so anything shorter than 8’ would be basically useless. 

 
3. the variance requested is not substantial in light of the fact that it is a very 

permeable deer fence that really doesn’t impede vision for anyone involved… 
except the deer. 

 
4. the proposed variance will not have an adverse effect or impact on the physical or 

environmental conditions in the neighborhood or district due to the fact that it is 
a single fence stretched between cedar poles placed at regular intervals. 

 
5. the alleged difficulty necessitating the variance  was self-created, but is not 

sufficient so as to cause a denial of the requested variance.   
 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Patterson Zoning Board of Appeals 
hereby grants the application of NEV Realty, LLC for an area variance of 2’ for the side and 
rear fences, and 4’ for the lot frontage fence pursuant to §154-15 A of the Patterson Town 
Code; Fences, stone walls and masonry walls, in order to place an 8’ fence along the side, rear, 
and front property lines. 
 
Board Member Bodor: Second. 
  
    Board Member Bodor  - Yes 

Board Member Burdick  -    Yes 
    Board Member Carinha - Yes 
    Chairman Olenius  - Yes 
 
VOTE: Resolution carried by a vote of 4 to 0.  
 
 
Chairman Olenius stated alright, gentleman. You are all set. 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated okay. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated best of luck. 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated thank you very much. 
 



  Zoning Board Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2014 Minutes Page 9 

 
Chairman Olenius stated very nice operation you have out there. I really was… I was very 
impressed when I went there 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated thank you. 
 
Mr. Prospero stated thank you. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated you, know. It really looks good. 
 
Board Member Carinha stated thanks again for meeting me the other day. 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated no problem. 
 
Board Member Carinha stated I appreciate it. 
 
Mr. Prospero stated goodnight. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated good luck. 
 
Board Member Carinha stated goodnight. 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated goodnight. Yep. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated thanks. 
 
Mr. Wheeler stated yeah. 
 
 
4) Other Business 
 
Chairman Olenius stated is there any other business. 
 
[Inaudible – train passing] 
 
Chairman Olenius stated do you have anything. 
 
[Inaudible – train passing] 
 
Chairman Olenius stated no meeting switchings or anything. Nothing like that. Nobody’s got 
vacation plans. 
 
Board Member Carinha stated no…. no more surgeries. 
 
[Laughter] 
 
 
a) Minutes 
 
Chairman Olenius stated okay, I had a chance to review the minutes from both June eighteenth 



  Zoning Board Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2014 Minutes Page 10 

 
and July sixteenth. Um, I didn’t see anything wrong with them, so… 
 
Board Member Bodor stated the July sixteenth meeting. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated okay. 
 
Board Member Bodor stated on page five. We talked about the rose, R-O-S-E, of Sharon plants. 
In the minutes, it appears as rows, W…R-O-W-S.  
 
Secretary stated okay. 
 
Board Member Bodor stated it’s listed twice on that page. 
 
Secretary stated okay. I see it. 
 
Board Member Bodor stated it’s a tree, the Rose of Sharon. 
 
Secretary stated right.  
 
[Laughter] 
 
Board Member Bodor stated but, if you don’t know, and you’re tape – you’re listening… 
 
Secretary stated it sounds like the other. 
 
Board Member Bodor stated that’s what happened. 
 
Secretary stated okay. We’ll change that. 
 
Board Member Bodor stated other than that, everything looks good. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated so, I’ll make a motion to accept the… both months meeting minutes 
with that… 
 
Board Member Bodor stated one correction. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated one correction. 
 
Board Member Bodor stated I’ll second that. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated all in favor. 
 
Motion carried by a vote of 4-0. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated okay… 
 
Board Member Bodor stated is that it. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated that’s it. I make a motion to… do you have anything, counselor. 



  Zoning Board Meeting Minutes 
August 20, 2014 Minutes Page 11 

 
 
Nancy Tagliafierro stated no. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated nothing. 
 
Nancy Tagliafierro stated nothing tonight. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated all right. Then I guess we’ll make a motion to adjourn. 
 
Board Member Carinha stated second. 
 
Chairman Olenius stated all in favor. 
 
Motion carried by a vote of 4-0. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 7:36 PM. 
 


	August 20, 2014 (for website)
	August 20, 2014 (for site)

